
Agricultural Roads Improvement Program (ARIP) Frequently Asked 
Questions (FAQ) 
Keywords 

Application 

Advertisement 

Estimate 

Pre-award 

Post-award 

Producer  

Eligibility  

Engineering 

Industry Support 

Producers  

Bridge  

Reimbursement

Questions Keywords 
1. Can I apply to ARIP and another program (LRIP, STP) with the same 

project?  
Provided that the project meets the eligibility requirements for both ARIP and the 
other program you are applying to, you can apply to multiple programs with the 
same project. However, you will only be able to accept funding from one program, 
in the event you are selected for both. WisDOT will allow the applicant to choose 
which program they would prefer to accept, and which to decline.  

Application 
Pre-award 

2. Can I apply to ARIP in the second solicitation if I already applied (but was 
not awarded) in the first solicitation?  

Yes, one project sponsor can submit the same project in the second solicitation if it 
was not awarded in the first solicitation. Keep in mind that one sponsor cannot 
submit more than 2 applications per solicitation cycle.  

Application 
Pre-award 

3. What qualifies as an agricultural or forestry producer? 
For the purposes of the ARIP application, WisDOT is adopting a broad definition of 
“producer”. Firms that are directly involved in either using agricultural lands or the 
production or processing of agricultural or forestry resources are all considered 
producers. Some examples include:  

 Crop farmers 
 Animal agriculture farmers – cows, sheep, pigs, chickens, etc.  
 Animal feed and fertilizer producers/processors 
 Cheesemakers 
 Dairy processors 
 Loggers  
 Logging/paper processing plants 
 Greenhouses 

Producers 

4. Are gravel road projects eligible for ARIP?  
Road projects to improve gravel roads by adding more gravel to the roadway are 
not considered eligible for ARIP. Per Wis. Stat. 86.31 (3o) (b), After completion of 

Eligibility 



the project, the highway will not be designated as a class "B" highway under s. 
349.15 and will not be subject to a posted weight limitation other than under 
extraordinary or emergency circumstances. It is unlikely that improving an existing 
gravel road with the addition of more gravel has the structural capacity to remove 
these weight restrictions and provide the project area with the required 10-year 
lifespan.  
If the ARIP project is intended to upgrade a gravel road to pavement, this may be 
eligible. This project must meet all the ARIP eligibility criteria, including removing 
the weight limit and/or Class B designation after the project’s completion.  

5. Once a project has been awarded, how does a municipality select an 
engineer to design and complete the project?  

Once a project is selected, the community may begin the bidding process to find 
an engineering firm to complete the construction of the project. More information 
about this process can be found in the ARIP Guidelines document here: Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation Agricultural Roads Improvement Program (ARIP) 
(wisconsindot.gov).  

Engineering 
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6. Where can I find industry specific resources to help with my ARIP 
application? 

WisDOT has partnered with a number of industry organizations in order to support 
ARIP applicants gather information to create a strong application. The Wisconsin 
Farm Bureau Federation, The Wisconsin Cheesemakers Association, The Great 
Lakes Timber Professionals Association and the UW- Madison Wisconsin Local 
Technical Assistance Program can offer support to producers looking to provide 
information to their local government officials to support the ARIP application.  
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7. How can I omit a portion of roadway in my ARIP application, such as a 
bridge? 

If you have an eligible project area that meets all of the requirements as laid out in 
Wis. Stat. 86.31 (3o) (b), but would like to omit the bridge within the project area, , 
first enter in the first section of the road before the bridge (including on/at/toward 
information) and then click the “+Add” button to add a new location to represent 
the second portion of the roadway after the bridge with it’s respective 
on/at/toward information.  
Then, when indicating if the project area includes a bridge or culvert, select “No” 
for both.  
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8. What if a bridge has no bridge ID?  
A structure that meets the definition of bridge per the Federal Highway 
Administration must have an associated ID. It may be that the structure in 
question may be considered a culvert by definition and thus may not have an 
associated structure ID.  
Please contact David Bohnsack at the Bureau of Structures to get more 
information about the structure in question and how it may be classified. You can 
contact him at David.Bohnsack@dot.wi.gov or by phone: 608-785-9781.  
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9. Is there a limit on the number of pictures, letters of support, other 
supporting documents, etc. that can be provided in the application?  

There is a 10 MB upload limit for all document uploads on the online ARIP 
application. Beyond this, there is no hard limit for the number of pages of 
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narrative, pictures, and supporting letters. Use your best judgement when 
considering what to submit.  

10. What are acceptable forms of documentation for a Class B weight 
restriction or other posted weight restriction?  

For the purposes of the ARIP application, we are allowing a wide array of 
supporting documentation with regard to posted weight restrictions and Class B 
restrictions. These are some examples of documentation that would be sufficient 
for supporting the posted weight restriction eligibility requirement:  

- A dated photograph of a posted weight restriction on the road area 
- Any documentation produced in the process of obtaining a Class B 

designation for a roadway posting a seasonal or special weight limitation 
- A dated announcement to your community of seasonal or special weight 

limitations in effect and where they are located 
- A signed attestation by the local officials of a posted weight restriction or 

Class B designation on the roadway in question 
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11. What if producers are reluctant to provide economic information?  
When the applicant is filling out the producer economic assessment portion of the 
application, they will be providing the sum total of each affected producer’s 
average total sales over a 5-year span, so that one producer cannot be singled out 
among the others. If producers are reluctant to provide this information, please 
contact the Wisconsin Farm Bureau Federation or other applicable industry 
representatives for guidance.  
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12. How do I report a large number of producers (more than 100) that use 
the roadway to be considered for ARIP funding?  

Provided that the roadway meets all of the ARIP eligibility requirements as laid out 
in Wis. Stat. 86.31 (3o)(b), it is encouraged that the applicant provides information 
from all affected producers when submitting their application. However, in 
situations where that may be unfeasible, it is recommended that the applicant 
provides the information for as many affected producers as possible.  Per the ARIP 
eligibility requirements, only 1 affected producer needs to be provided to be 
eligible to apply for ARIP.  

Producers 

13. How are ARIP projects funded/reimbursed?  
ARIP is a reimbursement program, which means that awarded projects are 
reimbursed after costs are incurred. This is similar to how LRIP reimbursement 
works, where the municipality incurs the initial costs and is reimbursed upon 
project completion.  
Unlike LRIP, ARIP allows for quarterly reimbursements. Per Wis. Stat.86.31 (3o), 
ARIP projects can be reimbursed no more frequently than quarterly. This means 
that the sponsor in question can incur costs and be reimbursed multiple times 
throughout the course of the project’s construction.  

Post-Award 
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14. Can I use ARIP funding to construct a new roadway or structure?  
ARIP is designed to improve already existing weight restricted or Class B roadways 
or bridges or culverts on weight restricted or Class-B roadways used by agricultural 
or forestry producers such that they are no longer weight restricted. Construction 
of new roadways, bridges, or culverts are not eligible.   

Eligibility 

15. Can engineering contractors help to provide a project cost estimate?  Application 



ARIP applicants can elect to work with an engineering firm in order to obtain a cost 
estimate for their ARIP application. As any costs incurred prior to the distribution 
of the SMA are non-reimbursable, the cost to work with a firm to obtain a project 
cost estimate for an ARIP application is not able to be reimbursed.  
 
Should the applicant be selected for ARIP, they must still participate in the project 
bidding process in order to select an engineering firm for project design and 
construction. The same engineering firm that aided with the project estimate can 
submit a project bid for consideration. More information about the bidding 
process can be found in the ARIP Guidelines document: Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation Agricultural Roads Improvement Program (ARIP) 
(wisconsindot.gov).  
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16. Can towns or counties complete their own project design and 
construction?  

Towns, cities or villages may not use their own work force or equipment on ARIP 
projects pursuant to s.86.31(2)(b), Wis. Stats.  
 
A Cost Effectiveness Finding (CEF) is required for county ARIP projects when the 
county will be completing a portion of the work with their own forces. If the 
county chooses to use their forces and equipment on the project and completes a 
CEF, the county must receive approval from the ARIP Discretionary Committee 
prior to bidding. The county should provide documentation to the ARIP committee 
that confirms the work will be cost effective. The county must receive approval 
from the committee on the project prior to work being performed. 
 
A town, city or village that does not receive a responsible bid for an ARIP 
improvement may contract with their county for the improvement. In order for 
the county to do the work, all bids must have been rejected and considered not 
“responsible” or not “responsive,” pursuant to s. 86.31(2)(b), Wis. Stats. 
 
ARIP contracts shall be awarded on the basis of competitive bids and shall be 
awarded to the lowest responsible bidder. A town may award a contract to the 
county using the 10% rule pursuant to s. 86.31(6)(h) Wis. Stats. criteria and 
procedures for contracting with a county for a town road ARIP improvement must 
include all of the following: 

• A requirement that a written and sealed estimate of the cost of the 
improvement that includes the source of the estimate be prepared prior to 
the time set for the opening of bids for the improvement and not be 
opened until after the opening of all bids 

• A requirement that all bids may be rejected, and the contract awarded to a 
county for the improvement if the lowest bid exceeds the cost estimate 
under s.86.31(6)(h)(2) Wis. Stats. by at least 10% and the town board 
notifies the two lowest bidders or, if only one bid was received. 

• A requirement that the amount of the contract with a county for the 
improvement be at least 10% below the lowest bid received for the 
improvement. 
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• A provision that permits rebidding if the amount of the proposed contract 
with a county for the improvement is less than 10% below the lowest bid 
received for the improvement. 

 
Subject to s. 59.52(30), a county may not perform work in another county unless 
one of the following applies: 

• A part of the project location is in the county doing the work and no part 
of the project goes beyond the adjacent county. 

• The project location is, wholly or in part, in a municipality that lies partially 
within the county doing the work. 

 
17. Are Hot Mix Asphalt Only projects eligible for ARIP funding? 

The requirements laid out in Wis. Stat. 86.31 (3o)(b) state that, upon completion of 
an ARIP project, the road must not be subject to a posted weight limitation unless 
under emergency or extraordinary circumstances. It is unlikely that a project solely 
involving the purchase of hot mix asphalt will result in the removal of weight 
restrictions. Consequently, ARIP project applications that have the purchase of hot 
mix asphalt listed as the primary construction activity are not eligible.  

Eligibility  

18. What if connecting roads outside of the project area, or outside of the 
sponsor’s jurisdiction, are weight restricted?  

ARIP eligibility is laid out within Wis.Stat. 86.31 (3o)(b). A project must meet all of 
these eligibility requirements in order to be eligible to receive ARIP funding. One of 
these requirements states that upon project completion, the project area will not 
be designated as a class "B" highway under s. 349.15 and will not be subject to a 
posted weight limitation other than under extraordinary or emergency 
circumstances.  So long as weight restrictions are removed on the project area 
itself after project completion, this section of the eligibility criteria is fulfilled. 
Roadways outside of the project area are not considered when evaluating a 
project reimbursement request for ARIP eligibility.  We encourage potential 
sponsors to work with neighboring municipalities to remove weight restrictions for 
entire routes, if possible.   

Eligibility 

19. What are the advertising requirements for ARIP projects?  
The following are requirements that sponsors must meet when advertising their 
ARIP projects for bidding:  

• The sponsor has received a signed SMA from WisDOT 
• The advertised project is built to appropriate standards 
• The project is advertised in a newspaper 

o Advertisement via internet, telephone, public posting, or other 
means is non-compliant with the statutory requirement.  

• The project is advertised as a Class 2 notice 
o Pursuant to s.985.07(2), Wis. Stats. “all notices designated as class 

2 notices require 2 insertions.” 
o Pursuant to s. 985.01(1m), Wis. Stats. “’Insertion’ when used to 

indicate the publication of a legal notice more than one time, 
means once each week for consecutive weeks, the last of which 

Advertisement 
 
 

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/statutes/statutes/349/ii/15


shall be at least one week before the act or event, unless 
otherwise specified by law.” 

o Pursuant to s. 990.01(46), Wis. Stats. “a ‘week’ is defined as seven 
consecutive days.”  

• The advertisement states that it is an ARIP project 
• The advertisement states the date and time in which bids will no longer be 

accepted 
• The advertisement should identify the location(s) of the project 

 
A sponsor may choose to advertise their ARIP project in its entirety, or separated 
out into phases or specific improvement including, but not limited to, a feasibility 
study, design engineering, grading, base, paving, and road finish materials.  
 
Note that once an advertisement has been published for either a complete 
improvement project or a project broken out into phases, the sponsor cannot 
further break up the phases of work due to a violation of the ARIP competitive bid 
requirement pursuant to s. 86.31(2)(b).  
 
ARIP projects are awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, as aligned with the 
advertised phase(s).  
 
More information about the advertisement and award process can be found in the 
ARIP Guidelines document, pages 6-8:  Updated ARIP Guidelines 2024 
(wisconsindot.gov).  
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